
Yavapai College District Governing Board operates as a policy governance Board.  This means that the 
Board makes all the policy decisions, adopts an annual budget, and hires the college president.  The 

college president oversees daily operations and supervises college employees.  

Yavapai College 
District Governing Board 

Regular Meeting   

Wednesday, January 14th, 2026 
Virtually Only  

11:00 a.m. 
The YouTube channel will be open to the public at 10:45 a.m. at the latest. 

Livestream Link: 
https://www.youtube.com/user/YavapaiCollege 

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.)  §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the 

Yavapai College District Governing Board and to the general public that the Board will hold a public meeting, 

open to the public as specified below. The Board reserves the right to change the order of items on the 

agenda. One or more members of the Board may participate in the meeting by telephonic communication. 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03.A.2, A.3 and A.4, the Board may vote to go into Executive Session, which will 

not be open to the public, for legal advice concerning any item on the agenda to review, discuss and consider 

records exempt by law from public inspection, including the receipt and discussion of information or 

testimony that is specifically required to be maintained as confidential by state or federal law; or to consult 

with and instruct its attorneys regarding its position on contracts, litigation or settlement discussions.  If 

indicated on the agenda, the Board may also vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the 

public, to discuss specific agenda items. 

Persons with a disability may request reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter or closed 

captions, by contacting the Executive Assistant at (928)776-2307. Requests should be made as early as 

possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 

Please note that the meeting conclusion time is included for planning purposes only and does not necessarily 

reflect the actual time of the agenda item. When regular board meetings, public hearings (both truth in 

taxation and budget adoption public hearings) and budget adoption special meetings are scheduled for the 

same date, each hearing or meeting will begin immediately upon adjournment of the preceding hearing or 

meeting.  

If the agenda includes an Open Call, members of the public will have no more than 3 minutes to speak. The 

time allotted for each speaker may be less than 3 minutes, depending on the number of individuals wishing to 

address the board at the meeting and the board president’s determination of the total time available for open 

call at the meeting, given the other matters on the board’s agenda. *In addition, if there are a number of 

people who wish to speak about the same issue and who have the same viewpoint about that issue, the board 

president may direct them to appoint a representative or representatives to speak for the entire group. 

Members of the board may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda but that are 

raised in Open Call. Matters raised during Open Call that are on the current board agenda may be discussed 

and/or decided by the board at the appropriate time on the agenda. 

Page 1 of 74

https://www.youtube.com/user/YavapaiCollege


Yavapai College District Governing Board operates as a policy governance Board.  This means that the 
Board makes all the policy decisions, adopts an annual budget, and hires the college president.  The 

college president oversees daily operations and supervises college employees.  

AGENDA 

1. General Functions: Procedural
a. Call to Order

b. Pledge of Allegiance {Time: 1}

c. Election of Board Liaison – Board Spokesperson for 2026 – Board Chair Deb
McCasland – DISCUSSION AND DECISION {Time: 10}

d. Board Meeting Procedure –Board Chair Deb McCasland–INFORMATION-
{Time: 5}

2. Board Business
a. Executive Session

i. Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3), (4), and (7), – Discussion and
consultation with the College Attorney and its representatives to receive
legal advice, consider the College’s position regarding contracts that are the
subject of negotiations, including the potential purchase or lease of real
property in Yavapai County, and instruct its attorney and/or
representatives regarding the same. – Attorney Rory Juneman, and Dr.
Clint Ewell, Chief Operating Officer - INFORMATION AND
DISCUSSION {Time: 40}

ii. Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3) and (A)(4) - Receive Legal Advice

from Legal Counsel and Discuss Current Status of Pending Litigation

Entitled: United States ex rel. Boglivi et al v. Yavapai Community College

District – Attorney Georgia Staton, and Attorney Ravi Patel -

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION {Time: 55}

b. Reconvene in Public Session
i. Possible Action to confirm directions provided to Yavapai College

representatives and/or legal counsel in executive session – DECISION
{Time: 5}

c. Board Budget Presentation -Dr. Clint Ewell, Chief Operating Officer –
INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND DECISION {Time: 35} (Attached)

d. District Governing Board Schedule – Ms. Yvonne Sandoval, Executive Assistant –
INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND DECISION {Time: 10}

i. Board Workshop to be Rescheduled

Page 2 of 74



Yavapai College District Governing Board operates as a policy governance Board.  This means that the 
Board makes all the policy decisions, adopts an annual budget, and hires the college president.  The 

college president oversees daily operations and supervises college employees.  

3. Study Session

e. Consent Agenda – DECISION {Time: 15}
i. Board Regular Meeting Minutes November 19th, 2025 (Attached)
ii. Arizona Department of Education Community College Adult Education 

and Workforce Development Program Intergovernmental Agreement
(Attached)

iii. First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement Between Yavapai 
County Community College District and Tri-City College Preparatory High 
School (Attached)

iv. First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai 
County Community College District and Bagdad Unified School District 
#20 (Attached)

v. Waiver of Conflict of Interest, Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing 
Student Placement with Yavapai County Community Health Services
(Attached)

vi. Yavapai College’s Provost New Curriculum Proposal (Attached)
1. Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning Certificate
2. Early Childhood Education Industry Certificate

vii. Yavapai College’s Workforce Development and Health Sciences New 
Curriculum Proposal (Attached)

1. Yavapai Detention Officer Training Academy Certificate
2. Diagnostic Medical Sonography Certificate
3. Integrative Health (Fitness/Reiki Trainer) – AAS
4. Integrative Health (Massage Therapy) – AAS
5. Integrative Health (Reflexology) – AAS
6. Massage Therapy Certificate
7. Reflexology Certificate
8. Semiconductor Manufacturing Technician Certificate

viii. Yavapai College’s Workforce Development and Health Sciences Program 
Deletions (Attached)

1. Brewing Technology Certificate
2. Limited X-Ray Technician Certificate

f. President’s Report – Dr. Lisa Rhine – INFORMATION – {Time: 60}
i. Changes to Filing Location for College Board Candidates and Campaign 

Finance Documents – Ms. Laurin Custis, Director of Elections (Attached)
ii. Yavapai County Education Updates and Gratitude – Mr. Steven King, 

Yavapai County School Superintendent
iii. Yavapai College’s Athletic Conference Update – Mr. Tim Kneip, Athletic 

Director (Attached)

g. 2026 Governing Board Annual Conflict of Interest Disclosures – Attorney Lynne 
Adams - {Time: 10}

4. Adjournment of Board Regular Meeting: Procedural – DECISION {Time: 1}

Page 3 of 74



Salary + ERE

Legal / 
Professional / 

Other 
Contractual Travel Food Dues Printing Supplies Other Total

FY23
  Budget 91,171 107,000            35,800 5,000 7,000 5,000 6,700 500 258,171            
  Expenditures 77,895 58,471 31,898 4,237 - 652 789 1,317 175,259            
     % of Budget 85% 55% 89% 85% 0% 13% 12% 263% 68%

FY24
  Budget 95,945 107,000            35,800 5,000 7,000 5,000 6,700 500 262,945            
  Expenditures 108,269            65,451 47,200 3,926 - 2,882 3,320 1,130 232,178            
     % of Budget 113% 61% 132% 79% 0% 58% 50% 226% 88%

FY25
  Budget 114,334            147,500            41,500 7,000 4,000 3,000 3,000 2,982 323,316            
  Expenditures 111,793            130,664            24,801 5,508 23 895 2,360 3,116 279,160            
     % of Budget 98% 89% 60% 79% 1% 30% 79% 104% 86%

FY26
  Budget 116,263            80,750 41,500 7,000 4,000 3,000 3,000 1,500 257,013            
  Expenditures 102,785            87,500 13,323 - - 215 162 251 204,236            
     % of Budget 88% 108% 32% 0% 0% 7% 5% 17% 79%

Payroll is encumbered.
Legal / Professional / Other Contractual FY26 budget is lowest of the 4 years.
PO was lowered in November to reduce encumbered balance - and overall expense -  in Legal / Professional.

FY26 is 50% Complete

YAVAPAI COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
REPORT OF EXPENDITURES

Districy Governing Board Budget Trends
FY's 23 - December, 2025

Page 4 of 74



Yavapai College 
District Governing Board 

Regular Meeting   

Wednesday, November 19th, 2025 
Virtually Only  

1:00 p.m. 
The YouTube channel will be open to the public at 12:45 p.m. at the latest. 

Livestream Link: 
https://www.youtube.com/user/YavapaiCollege 

Members Present 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair 
Mr. Steve Bracety, Board Secretary 
Mr. William Kiel, Board Member 
Mr. Patrick Kuykendall, Board Member 
Mr. Toby Payne, Board Member  

Administration Present 
Dr. Lisa Rhine, President  
Ms. Yvonne Sandoval, Executive Assistant 
Ms. Sarah Lawson, Board Attorney 
Ms. Kimberly Whitman, Board Secretary 

Board Meeting was virtual only, all Board Members and administration appeared virtually. 

MINUTES
HTTPS://YAVAPAI.HOSTED.PANOPTO.COM/PANOPTO/PAGES/VIEWER.ASPX?ID=0835E67F-E4B4-4414-8C6E-B39A0163FE34 

1. General Functions: Procedural
a. Call to Order

This agenda item begins at 13:01:00 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=457.930787 

The meeting was called to order by Chair McCasland at 1:00pm. 

b. Pledge of Allegiance {Time: 1}

This agenda item begins at 13:01:11 

https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=469.355611 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Board Member Kuykendall. 

Page 5 of 74

https://www.youtube.com/user/YavapaiCollege
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=457.930787
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=457.930787
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=469.355611
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=469.355611


c. Board Meeting Procedure – Board Chair Deb McCasland – INFORMATION
{Time: 5}

This agenda item begins at 13:01:42 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=500.127727 

Board Chair McCasland explained the general expectations for the meeting. Chair 
McCasland presented a statement to the Board describing the role of the Board in regard to 
Policy 101. Board Chair McCasland noted that all questions should be held until the 
discussion period of the meeting. Discussion will be held in alphabetical order.  

2. Board Business
a. Consent Agenda – DECISION {Time: 5}

i. Board Regular Meeting Minutes October 28th, 2025 (Attached)
ii. Board Executive Session Confidential Minutes October 28th, 2025
iii. Receipt of Reports on Revenues and Expenditures for October 2025

(Attached)

This agenda item begins at 13:04:48 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34 

Board Member Kiel asked to pull items i and iii from the consent agenda for discussion. 

Board Member Kiel moved, seconded by Board Member Bracety, to approve Consent 
Agenda Item ii. The motion passed unanimously (Ayes: Payne, Kiel, McCasland, 
Kuykendall, Bracety).  

Board Member Kiel presented a statement on modifying the format of the current District 
Governing Board Minutes from video links to a completely written format. Attorney 
Lawson stated that the current District Governing Board Minutes meet all legal standards 
for Open Meeting Law requirements. It was stated by Dr. Rhine that the District Governing 
Board had recently voted on the current method of preparing the meeting minutes.   

Board Member Kuykendall moved, seconded by Board Member Bracety, to approve 
Consent Agenda Item i. The motion passed (Ayes: Bracety, Kuykendall, McCasland, Payne. 
Nay’s: Kiel).  

Discussion was held related to item iii. Discussion and comments are available at the link 
above.  

Board Member Kuykendall moved, seconded by Board Member Bracety, to approve 
Consent Agenda Item iii. The motion passed unanimously (Ayes: Bracety, Kiel, McCasland, 
Payne, and Kuykendall).  

b. Yavapai College Fiscal Year 2027 Budget Assumptions and Tuition Proposals – Dr.
Clint Ewell, Chief Operating Officer – INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND
DECISION {Time: 45} (Attached)

Page 6 of 74

https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=500.127727
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=500.127727
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=686.344738
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=686.344738


This agenda item begins at 13:18:20 

https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=1498.654727 

Dr Ewell presented on the budget process and assumptions for the next year. The 
presentation was provided to the Board to explain the tuition and fee increases required for 
the next fiscal year. Discussion was held after the presentation. Discussion and comments 
are available at the link above.  

 
Board Chair McCasland moved, seconded by Board Member Bracety, to approve the 
request for the 2027 Budget Assumptions and Tuition Proposal tuition as presented. The 
motion passed. (Ayes: McCasland, Bracety, Kuykendall, Payne. Nays: Kiel).  
 
The Board took a recess from 2:06 to 2:12 pm.   
 

3. Study Session 
a. Board Liaisons’ Reports - INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION {Time: 10} 

i. Board Spokesperson – Board Chair Deb McCasland 
ii. AACCT Board Representative – Board Chair Deb McCasland  
iii. Yavapai College Foundation – Board Secretary Steve Bracety 

 
This agenda item begins at 14:12:47 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=4758.955799 
 

b. Presidents Report – Dr. Lisa Rhine – INFORMATION – {Time: 60} 
i. College Council – Dr. Marylou Mercado, Dr. Janet Nix, and Mr. Rodney 

Jenkins 
1. Faculty Senate – Dr. Heather Leavitt, Faculty Senate President 

(Attached) 
 

This agenda item begins at 14:16:06 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=4964.248002  
 

2. Staff Association – Ms. Ginney Bilbray, Staff Association President 
(Attached) 

 
This agenda item begins at 14:20:38 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=5236.315235 
 

3. Student Government Association – Ms. Talia Yazzie, Student 
Government President - (Attached) 

 
This agenda item begins at 14:25:16 

Page 7 of 74

https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=1498.654727
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=1498.654727
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=4765.051112
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=4765.051112
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=4964.248002
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=4964.248002
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5236.315235
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5236.315235


https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=5514.359827 
 

Rodney Jenkins introduced Alyssa Bullock, who was unable to attend the meeting. 
Alyssa provided a recorded presentation to the District Governing Board. The 
recording can be viewed at the link above.  

 
ii. Budget to Actual Monthly Reports and Cash Reserves Monthly Reports – 

October 2025 (Attached) 
 
This agenda item begins at 14:29:37 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=5774.919231 
 

4. Adjournment of Board Regular Meeting: Procedural – DECISION {Time: 1} 
 
This agenda item begins at 14:29:49 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-
b39a0163fe34&start=5787.670602 
 
Board Member Kuykendall moved, seconded by Board Member Bracety, to adjourn the 
November 19th, 2025 District Governing Board Meeting. The motion passed unanimously 
(Ayes: McCasland, Bracety, Payne, Kuykendall, Kiel).  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ________________________  
Kimberly Whitman, Recording Secretary    Date  
 
 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Mrs. Deb McCasland, Board Chair     Mr. Steve Bracety, Board Secretary   
 

Page 8 of 74

https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5514.359827
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5514.359827
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5774.919231
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5774.919231
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5787.670602
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=0835e67f-e4b4-4414-8c6e-b39a0163fe34&start=5787.670602


Anthony Contente-Cuomo, Attorney for Yavapai College

Page 9 of 74



Page 10 of 74



Page 11 of 74



Page 12 of 74



Page 13 of 74



Page 14 of 74



Page 15 of 74



Page 16 of 74



Page 17 of 74



Page 18 of 74



Page 19 of 74



Page 20 of 74



Page 21 of 74



Page 22 of 74



Page 23 of 74



Page 24 of 74



 

Page 25 of 74



Page 26 of 74



12/18/2025

Page 27 of 74



Page 28 of 74



YAVAPAI COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
DENNIS M. MCGRANE, COUNTY ATTORNEY 

255 East Gurley Street 
Prescott, AZ 86301 

www.yavapaiaz.gov/coatty 
ycao@yavapaiaz.gov 

 
November 17, 2025 

 
Attorney Client Privileged Communication 
Yavapai College District Governing Board 
1100 E. Sheldon St. 
Prescott, Arizona 86301 

 
Re: Waiver of Conflict Regarding the Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing 

Student Placement with Yavapai County Community Health Services as well as 
any other related agreements, contracts and legal assistance. 

 
Dear Yavapai College District Governing Board: 

 
Yavapai County has requested that the Yavapai County Attorney’s Office (“YCAO”) 

provide legal services regarding the Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing Student Placement 
between Yavapai County Community Health Services and Yavapai College District (“Yavapai 
College”) 

 
YCAO recognizes that Yavapai College may have independent legal counsel. Nonetheless, 

YCAO maintains an attorney-client relationship with Yavapai College by statute and has 
periodically provided legal advice to Yavapai College. Yavapai College’s “client” status does not 
change even if it uses independent legal representation. It is also possible that both parties may 
eventually ask YCAO for legal services concerning this matter. 

 
Similar to all other attorneys and law offices, the Yavapai County Attorney, along with 

his deputies, is subject to the rules of professional conduct. Those rules include limitations as to 
when a lawyer may provide legal representation to a client if that representation may conflict 
with the lawyer’s representation of another client. In some circumstances, a lawyer may proceed 
with representation if all affected parties provide a written waiver of the conflict of interest 
after being informed of the consequences of such a waiver. The request for legal services 
regarding the above referenced agreement is one of those circumstances. 

 
Another possibility of concern is the waiver of the attorney-client privilege in common 

representation situations. Even if YCAO’s attorneys only review the above referenced issue(s) on 
behalf of Yavapai County with the consent of Yavapai College, there is the possibility such an 
arrangement could be construed as a common representation to which the attorney-client privilege 
does not attach. If YCAO’s attorneys represent both parties in this matter, then neither party would 
likely have any confidentiality or privilege relative to the other regarding information shared with 
YCAO. 

 
 
 

Criminal Division Civil Division Bad Check Program Victim Services 
(928) 771-3344 (928) 771-3338 (928) 771-3490 928-771-3485 

Page 29 of 74

http://www.yavapaiaz.gov/coatty
mailto:ycao@yavapaiaz.gov


Attorney Client Privileged Communication 
Yavapai College District Governing Board 
November 17, 2025  
Re: Waiver of Conflict Regarding the Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing Student Placement with Yavapai County 

Community Health Services as well as any other related agreements, contracts and legal assistance. 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Further conflicts could arise if the parties’ interests became adverse to one another. For 

instance, if one party alleged the other breached an agreement, or if one party violated a material 
term and the other wanted to seek enforcement of it, or if there was some other unanticipated 
dispute between the parties, additional conflicts may arise. These potential conflicts may foreclose 
alternatives that may otherwise be available to one or the other party. It is possible that these 
limitations or disputes could force YCAO to withdraw from or refuse representation related to the 
above referenced issue(s). 

Even though Yavapai College has not yet requested that YCAO provide legal services on 
this matter, YCAO also asks that you waive the conflict in the event that Yavapai College requests 
our legal services, thereby enabling YCAO to provide services to both entities if requested. 

Yavapai County’s current request is for review of the proposed Yavapai College 
Agreement for Nursing Student Placement with Yavapai County Community Health Services. 
However, it is possible that upon analysis of the Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing Student 
Placement with Yavapai County Community Health Services, YCAO may determine that 
substantial revisions or additional contracts or agreements are required, so YCAO also asks that 
you waive any conflict regarding any such additional contracts or agreements between Yavapai 
County and Yavapai College. 

 
If you feel you understand the above conflict of interest and its consequences, and are 

comfortable waiving those conflicts, the YCAO asks that you sign and return a copy of the 
enclosed Waiver of Conflict of Interest upon approval by the College board. YCAO will be asking 
Yavapai County for a similar waiver. Upon receipt of waivers from both parties, YCAO will 
provide the requested service with respect to the above referenced issue(s). 

If you approve the Waiver of Conflict of Interest that is enclosed with this letter, please 
only return the signed Waiver of Conflict of Interest to me. You may provide a copy of the waiver 
to me by email at Nicole.Weber@yavapaiaz.gov . Please feel free to contact me if you have any 
questions. 

Sincerely, 
 

Nicole Weber 
Deputy Yavapai County Attorney 

 
NW:mas 
Enclosure: Waiver of Conflict 

Page 30 of 74

mailto:Nicole.Weber@yavapaiaz.gov


WAIVER OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Re: Waiver of Conflict Regarding the Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing Student 
Placement Between Yavapai County and Yavapai College District (Yavapai 
College) 

Yavapai College, by and through its Representative, has reviewed the conflict-of-interest letter 
dated November 17, 2025,  from Deputy Yavapai County Attorney Nicole Weber regarding the 
Yavapai College Agreement for Nursing Student Placement between Yavapai County and Yavapai 
College . Accordingly, Yavapai College fully understands the implications of waiving the Yavapai 
County Attorney’s Office’s conflict of interest described in that letter regarding Yavapai County 
and Yavapai College, both of which are clients of the Yavapai County Attorney’s Office. 

Therefore, Yavapai College agrees to the waiver of the conflict of interest and authorizes 
the Yavapai County Attorney’s Office to proceed with review of the above referenced issue(s) on 
behalf of Yavapai County or both parties if both parties request services from the Yavapai County 
Attorney’s Office. Yavapai College also authorizes the Yavapai County Attorney’s Office to 
review or draft any other necessary contracts or agreements relating to the Yavapai College 
Agreement for Nursing Student Placement. 

Dated this  day of , 2025. 

Yavapai College District 

Signature 

Name and title 

Page 31 of 74



Page 32 of 74



Page 33 of 74



Page 34 of 74



Page 35 of 74



Page 36 of 74



Page 37 of 74



Page 38 of 74



Page 39 of 74



Page 40 of 74



Page 41 of 74



Page 42 of 74



Page 43 of 74



Page 44 of 74



Page 45 of 74



Page 46 of 74



Page 47 of 74



Page 48 of 74



Page 49 of 74



Page 50 of 74



Page 51 of 74



Page 52 of 74



Page 53 of 74



Page 54 of 74



Page 55 of 74



Page 56 of 74



Page 57 of 74



Page 58 of 74



Page 59 of 74



Page 60 of 74



Page 61 of 74



Page 62 of 74



 
 
 
1/9/2026 
 
Deborah McCasland 
Board Chair, Yavapai College  
1100 E Sheldon Street 
Prescott, Arizona 86301 
 
Re: Changes to filing location for college board candidates and campaign finance documents. 
 
Dear Board Chair McCasland, 
 
I would like to notify all Yavapai College Governing Board Candidates of a change in the designated 
location for submitting candidate and campaign finance filings. 
 
Pursuant to: 
A.R.S § 15-101(22) "School" or "public school" means any public institution established for the 
purposes of offering instruction to pupils in programs for preschool children with disabilities, 
kindergarten programs or any combination of elementary grades or secondary grades one through 
twelve. 
 
Article 1.4 Reporting Requirements and Disclosure Statements 
 
A.R.S § 16-928 (A)(2) The county officer in charge of elections is the filing officer for county, school 
district, community college district and special taxing district elections, including retention 
elections for superior court judges. The county officer in charge of elections is also the filing 
officer for committees that support or oppose a recall election or the circulation of a petition for a 
recall election for an officeholder of a county office, a school district governing board office, a 
community college district governing board office or a special taxing district governing board 
office, for committees that support or oppose a county, school district, community college district 
or special taxing district initiative or referendum or other ballot measure, question or proposition, 
including bond, tax, budget and budget override measures or that oppose or support the circulation 
of a petition for a county, school district, community college district or special taxing district 
initiative or referendum or other county, school district, community college district or special 
taxing district ballot measure, question or proposition.  
  
A.R.S § 15-1442 (E) All candidates for the office of community college district governing board 
member shall file with the clerk of the board of supervisors a statement of contributions and 
expenditures as provided in section 16-926. 
  
Taking these statutes into account, it is the County’s recommendation that all Yavapai College 
Governing Board Candidates file Statements of Interest, Nomination Papers, Petitions, Statements 
of Organization, and Termination Statements with the Yavapai County Elections Department. All 
Campaign Finance Reports are to be filed with the Yavapai County Clerk of the Board. 
 
 
 

Page 63 of 74

https://www.azleg.gov/ars/15/00101.htm
https://www.azleg.gov/ars/16/00928.htm
https://www.azleg.gov/ars/15/01442.htm


 
 

 
Yavapai County Elections has gone paperless! You may now submit filings electronically here: 

 

 
 

Candidate and Campaign Filing Portal 
 

Contact Us: 
 

Yavapai County Elections 
1015 Fair St. RM 228 

Prescott, Arizona 86305 
928-771-3248 Ext. 8 

elections@yavapaiaz.gov 
www.YavapaiVotes.gov 

 
 

Once a link has been created on the Clerk of the Board’s website, I will send that out to you. 
 

Yavapai County 
Clerk of the Board 

1015 Fair St., RM 310 
Prescott, AZ 86305 

(928) 771-3200 
www.yavapaiaz.gov 

clerkoftheboard.web@yavapaiaz.gov 
 

 
 
Best regards, 
 
Laurin L. Custis  
Yavapai County  
Director of Elections 
 
 
 

Page 64 of 74

https://www.jotform.com/app/252997256772171
mailto:elections@yavapaiaz.gov
http://www.yavapaivotes.gov/
http://www.yavapaiaz.gov/
mailto:clerkoftheboard.web@yavapaiaz.gov


2027-2028 NAIA PRESENTATION

YAVAPAI
COLLEGE
YAVAPAI
COLLEGE
ROUGHRIDERROUGHRIDERATHLETICSATHLETICS

Page 65 of 74



Women’s SoftballMen’s SoccerMen’s Baseball

NJCAA - A WINNING LEGACYNJCAA - A WINNING LEGACY

227744 xx xx xx
NJCAA National

Champions  
NJCAA National

Champions
NJCAA National

Champions  

Page 66 of 74



3-YEAR CONFERENCE WIN %3-YEAR CONFERENCE WIN %

19-58 (25%) 12-14-8 (35%) 33-77 (30%) 9-28 (24%)

53-59 (47%) 14-45 (24%) 14-13-3 (47%)

Page 67 of 74



TIMES ARE
1.  Reduction in athletic scholarships

2.  Competitors have increased investment in Athletics

3.  NJCAA and ACCAC expenses have increased

4.  Competitive parity has diminished significantly

CHANGINGCHANGING

Page 68 of 74



A PROMISING ALTERNATIVEA PROMISING ALTERNATIVE

NAIA
Founded in 1937
Based in Kansas City, Missouri

20 conferences nationwide
29 varsity sports and 250 teams
Emphasis on character and GPA

GSAC
Great Southwest Athletic Conference
Founded in 1986

10 member institutions
5 Arizona-based teams
5 Southern California-based teams

Page 69 of 74



TO JOIN THE NAIA
SEVEN REASONSSEVEN REASONS

1.  Align Athletics with YC 4-year degree programs

2.  Elevate the YC brand and strengthen recruiting 

3.  Increase student-athlete retention and graduation

4.  Reduce Athletic Department operating costs

5.  Establish a supportive Athletics alumni base

6.  Compete and win on a level financial playing field

7.Build a competitive rivalry with Embry Riddle  

Page 70 of 74



Australia

AA NEWNEWCONFERENCECONFERENCE

Arizona
Christian

Benedictine
Mesa

Embry-
Riddle

Hope
International

La 
Sierra

Life 
Pacific

Ottawa
University

Park 
Gilbert Soka

The 
Master’s

Page 71 of 74



BY THE NUMBERSBY THE NUMBERS
NJCAA/ACCAC

77
Conference

Teams

NAIA/GSAC

1010

219219 25025090%90% 82%82%

128128 119119
Conference

Teams
Conference

Games
Conference

Games

NJCAA D1
Schools

NAIA
Schools

Public
Schools

Private
Schools

Charter
Bus Trips

3939
YC Annual

COA

$16k$16k
GSAC Annual

COA

$30k$30k
Charter

Bus Trips

1111

Page 72 of 74



SCHOLARSHIP LIMITSSCHOLARSHIP LIMITS

NJCAA NAIA
1414

+ $1,216,000+ $1,216,000
*Based on $16,000 full scholarship value per year

SPORT
Volleyball

Men’s Soccer

Women’s Soccer

Men’s Basketball

Women’s Basketball

Baseball

Softball

Total LOI’s

LOI Dollar Value

24 (+4)24 (+4)

24 (+4)24 (+4)

1515

1515

3030

2424

146146

$2,336,000$2,336,000

88

1212

1212

88

88

1212

1010

7070

$1,120,000$1,120,000

Page 73 of 74



1. Accessibility (Public vs. Private, COA)1. Accessibility (Public vs. Private, COA)

THE THREE A’STHE THREE A’S

2. Affordability (Travel, officials, operating)2. Affordability (Travel, officials, operating)

3. A Level Playing Field (Scholarship limits)3. A Level Playing Field (Scholarship limits)

KEY ADVANTAGESKEY ADVANTAGES

Page 74 of 74


	ADP8763.tmp
	Budget Trend

	Yavapai College Agreement Nursing Students Letter-Waiver 11-17-2025.pdf
	WAIVER OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

	DGB Historial Budget Actual Detail 010926.pdf
	Budget Trend




